
BEAUFORT COUNTY 

DESIGN REVIEW BOARD (DRB) MINUTES 

November 1, 2018, Grace Coastal Church, 15 Williams Drive, Okatie, SC 

 

 

Members Present:   James Atkins, J. Michael Brock, Sallie Bridgwater and Donald L. Starkey 

 

Members Absent:  Brad Hill, Peter Brower and H. Pearce Scott 

 

Staff Present:  Nancy Moss, Beaufort County Community Development Department 

 

Guests:  Adam Sellner, Primax Properties 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Atkins called the meeting to order at 2:31 p.m. 

 

2. MINUTES:  Chairman Atkins asked if there were comments on the September 6, 2018 minutes.  

No comments were made.  Ms. Bridgwater motioned to approve the minutes as written.  Mr. 

Starkey seconded to approve.  Motion carried. 

 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT:  There was no public comment. 

 

4. NEW BUSINESS:  There was no New Business. 

 

5. OLD BUSINESS: 

 

A. Tractor Supply Company – Beaufort – Final: 

Mr. Brock recused himself from the meeting.  Ms. Moss gave the project background.  Mr. 

Sellner with Primax Properties, LLC, gave the presentation.  He said that they addressed all of 

the Staff comments and that the only outstanding issue was the red accent color.  Mr. Sellner 

stated that they were still proposing the red accent color that was submitted at the conceptual 

DRB meeting.  He said that the red was a trademark color for Tractor Supply Company and 

that there was a minimal amount of it on the project.   He said that the red shield on the signage 

and on the building is Sherwin Williams “True Red”.  Mr. Sellner stated that the Landscape 

Plan was revised to respond to the Staff comments. 

 

Ms. Bridgewater asked where the Pittosporum shrub was on the plan.  Mr. Brock said that the 

Pittosporum was labeled by its common name, Mock Orange, on the plan and described the 

various locations this plant was being proposed on the site.   Ms. Bridgwater said that the 

quantities of River Birch shown on the plan did not match the quantities listed on the plant 

schedule.  Mr. Brock said that the plans would be revised so the quantities shown on the plans 

would match the quantities listed on the plant schedule.  Ms. Bridgwater questioned why they 

were proposing to relocate wax myrtles because the plants had problems (i.e. leggy and split 

easily).  Mr. Brock stated that the wax myrtle plant was native to the area, listed in the Backyard 

Buffer brochure, would be regularly maintained and did not foresee an issue in using these 

shrubs.   

 

Mr. Starkey asked for clarification on the plantings between the open space and the gravel 

display area.  He said that the straight row of plantings needed to have another plant, such as 

muhly grass, incorporated into the design to help break it up and add interest.   Mr. Brock said 

that the plants would screen the parking lot.   Mr. Starkey questioned why the red accent color 



Design Review Board Page 2 of 2 November 1, 2018 

on the color sample and the building photograph did not match.  Mr. Sellner said that the red 

in the photograph didn’t print well, but that the red accent color being proposed would match 

the red accent color on the Tractor Supply Company building in Bluffton.   

 

Mr. Atkins said that the Tractor Supply Company architecture in Bluffton was pretty successful 

and appreciated the addition of the awnings on Parris Island Gateway side of the building and 

the revised roof parapet design for this project.  Mr. Atkins requested confirmation from the 

applicant that the red color being proposed would match the red accent color on the Tractor 

Supply Company building in Bluffton.  Mr. Sellner said he would provide confirmation.  Mr. 

Sellner indicated that the signage was pushed up and that the parking lot light pole locations 

were moved to avoid damaging existing trees per the Arborist’s recommendations.  Mr. Atkins 

stated that the arborist report should be followed throughout construction and that tree 

protection fencing should be installed to prevent damage to the existing specimen trees. 

 

Mr. Starkey made a motion to approve the final submission with the following conditions: 

 

 Revise the Landscape plan: 

o Make sure that the plant quantities shown on the Landscape Plan match the 

quantities listed on the Plant Schedule. 

o Add another plant variety to the row of plantings between the retention pond 

and the parking lot. 

 Provide confirmation that the Red accent color being proposed for this project matches 

the red accent color used at the Tractor Supply Company store in Bluffton. 

 

      Ms. Bridgwater seconded the motion. 

      Motion carried. 

6. OTHER BUSINESS: 

Mr. Brock returned to the meeting.  Ms. Moss presented the Board with the 2019 DRB meeting 

schedule.  The Board voted unanimously to meet on the first Thursday of each month and on the 

second Thursday in July to avoid the July 4th holiday conflict. 

 

Mr. Atkins said the next scheduled meeting was at 2:30 p.m. on Thursday, December 6, 2018 at 

the Grace Coastal Church, 15 Williams Drive, Okatie, SC  29909. 

 

7. ADJOURNMENT:  Mr. Brock made a motion to close the meeting and Ms. Bridgwater seconded 

the motion.  The meeting was adjourned at 3:10 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


